

M7 Auction 5.0

Version	5.0.242
Status	final
Date	01.09.2020
Author	M7 Auction Team
Reviewer	M7 Auction Manager

Deutsche Börse AG

Mailing address Mergenthaleralle 61 65760 Eschborn

Web

www.deutsche-boerse.de

Chairman of the Supervisory Board Martin Jetter

Executive Board

Labour Relations)

Theodor Weimer (Chief Executive Officer) Christoph Böhm (Chief Information Officer / Chief Operating Officer)

Officer / Chief Operating Officer) Thomas Book (Trading & Clearing) Stephan Leithner (Responsible for Post-Trading, Data & Index) Gregor Pottmeyer (Chief Financial Officer) Hauke Stars (Responsible for Cash Market, Pre-IPO & Growth Financing and Human Resources / Director of

German stock corporation registered in

Frankfurt/Main HRB No. 32232 Local court: Frankfurt/Main

Deutsche Börse AG
M7 Auction 5.0
Table of Contents

Table of Contents

Table of Contents	1
1 Introduction	3
1.1 M7 Auction	3
2 GUI Overview	4
2.1 Functional Overview	4
2.2 Graphical User Interface (GUI)	4
2.3 Menu Structure of M7 Auction GUI	4
2.4 Login	5
2.5 Single Login	6
2.6 Change Password	6
2.7 Reset Password	6
2.8 Logout	7
2.9 Messages	7
3 Auctions	8
3.1 Auction Overview	8
3.2 Auction Lifecycle	9
4 Bids	11
4.1 Submitting Bids	11
4.2 Modifying Bids	13
4.3 Cancelling Bids	14
4.4 Executed Bids	14
5 Reports	16
5.1 Download a Report	16
5.2 Report Types	16
5.2.1 All Bids Report	16
5.2.2 Auction Result Report	
6 Appendix	18
6.1 All Bids Report	18
6.1.1 Sample All Bids Report in CSV Format	
6.1.2 Sample All Bids Report in CSG Format	
6.2 Auction Result Report	18

Version 5.0.242 Page 1 of 19

Deutsche Börse AG

M7 Auction 5.0

MFG170 - M7 Auction - Bidder Handbook

Terminology

Term	Explanation
Call Phase	Phase, during which bids can be submitted, i.e. while the auction is in phase "Running"
DBAG	Deutsche Börse AG
Finished Auction	Auction that is in "Finished" or "Rejected"
Freeze Phase	Phase, during which bids can no longer be submitted but the auction is not finished yet, i.e. while the auction is in phase "Closed"
GUI	Graphical User Interface
Live Auction	Auction that is in "Published", "Running" or "Closed" phase
XML	Extensible Markup Language

Table 1: Terminology

1 Introduction

1.1 M7 Auction

M7 Auction Service offers single-sided auctions for the various markets with a dedicated quantity to be auctioned on behalf of the selling or buying entity.

This document provides Bidder users with a functional overview of the M7 Auction, which is the platform where the auction for various products is conducted. The M7 Auction is technically operated and hosted by DBAG.

The Service is a web-based solution accessible via the internet with an internet browser.

2 GUI Overview

2.1 Functional Overview

The M7 Auction provides Bidders with trading functionality via a Graphical User Interface (GUI).

The M7 Auction supports these user roles which have different set of rights:

- Bidder has full access to the trading functionality
- View User has only read access to the trading functionality. This user can view the bids placed by other Bidders assigned to the same member(s) however not able to place, modify, or cancel any bids.

The Reporting Engine provides the M7 Auction user with a reporting tool. The reporting engine generates reports based on the information available in the data store.

2.2 Graphical User Interface (GUI)

The GUI provides the user with an interface to the M7 Auction and allows the user to interact with the M7 Auction. The service is configurable for multiple languages on the instance level.

The users are not required to install any additional software on their workstations and do not need any detailed IT know-how. The M7 Auction GUI is simple and easy to use.

2.3 Menu Structure of M7 Auction GUI

Upon successful login, the M7 Auction GUI is displayed. In the menu on the left the user can find the Auction and Messages items and in the bottom there is the user's icon. Below this icon the user can find options for logout (power symbol), for getting the Market Operator contacts (symbol of business card) or for changing the password (key symbol).

Confidential Version 5.0.242 Page 4 of 19

	٩G							Confide
Auction 5.0							Vers	sion 5.0.
5170 - M7 Au	ction - Bidder Han	dbook					F	age 5 o
THIS IS LOGO	Auctions							
PLACEHULDER	Q Search for Auctions	2 matching	Number of		All Published Runn	ing Finished M	Ay Running My Fir	ished
	Name	Product	Lots	Energy per Lot	Progress 🔺		Phase	
Auctions	AUC03 (3)	BASEYEAR	5	26 352 MWh	12:00 (02.09.)	18:00 (02.09.)		•
Reports	AUC04 (4)	PEAKDEC	7	1 104 MWh	18:00 (02.09.)	20:00 (02.09.)		-
I	Energy per Lot 1104 M	iwh			© 2017. 2020 M7A: N	17 Auction Service v5	5.0.242-SNAPSHOT	en⇔de
					6 2017, 2020 MIA, 1		50242 STRESTOT	

Figure 1: Menu structure

2.4 Login

In order to start the M7 Auction GUI, the user must first open the M7 Auction login web page.

To access the system, the M7 Auction user needs to enter a valid user name and password on the login page.

THIS IS LOGO PLACEHOLDER		M7 Auction
User ID	M7AUSRXX	
Password		
<u>I forgot my pas</u>	ssword	(+) Login

© 2017, 2020 M7A; M7 Auction Service v5.0.242-SNAPSHOT | <u>en</u> ⇔ <u>de</u>

Figure 2: Login Screen

The user (login) ID must have at most 8 characters in length and contain only characters 'a'-'z', 'A'-'Z', '1'-'9'. Special characters are not allowed.

The password must be at least 8 characters long and contain one or more characters from at least three groups listed below:

- 'A'-'Z'
- 'a'-'z'
- '0'-'9'

MFG170 - M7 Auction - Bidder Handbook

- Special character(s)
 - ;,@#\$%^&+=
 - an underscore sign

Additionally, the password must be different from the last 10 passwords used for this user account.

On the login page the user has also an option for reseting his/her password in case it was forgotten. When the user clicks on the 'I forgot my password' link he/she is asked for entering the user ID. After the confirmation the user receives an email with an URL link where a new password can be set up. The URL link is valid for 30 minutes. If the password is not reset within this timeframe the user needs to request the password reset again.

Request pa	ssword reset using email:	
User ID	M7AUSRXX	
Email	your.email@example.com	
Request Pas	sword Reset	Cancel

Figure 3: Reset Password Screen

2.5 Single Login

Single login allows each authorized user to login to the M7 Auction one time per User ID. If a user is already logged into the system, a second login attempt with the same User ID will be successful, however the first login will be automatically terminated.

2.6 Change Password

The "Change Password" icon with the key symbol is placed in the bottom left hand corner below the user's icon. When the user clicks on "Change Password" menu item, the user is navigated to a "Change Password" screen that allows the users to change their password. User has to provide the old password (for security reasons) and type the new password twice (to avoid typos). There is also an option to display the password policy described above.

Change password:		
Old Password	Insert your old password	
New Password	Insert new password	
Repeat New Password	Repeat new password	
Show password policy		
Confirm		Cancel

Figure 4: Change Password Screen

2.7 Reset Password

In case a user forgets the password, the account is locked due to inactivity or the user submitted an incorrect password for 3

Deutsche Börse AG	Confidential
M7 Auction 5.0	Version 5.0.242
MFG170 - M7 Auction - Bidder Handbook	Page 7 of 19

times, the user can set up new password and renew his/her account by clicking on the 'I forgot my password' link available on the initial login page, see chapter Login.

2.8 Logout

The Logout icon is placed in the bottom left hand corner below the user's icon. Upon successful logout the M7 Auction login web page is displayed.

2.9 Messages

In the menu of the application, there is a "Messages" link which leads to Messages section.

The Messages section shows:

- all status changes of the auctions (as well as all Auction Details updates).
- the announcements sent by Market Operator

All messages from the last 3 months can be viewed on the Messages screen.

THIS IS LOGO	Messages	
PLACEHOLDER	Last Update Time	Message
	01.09.2020 15:22:18	Auction 'AUC13 (11)' has been published.
*	01.09.2020 15:21:51	Auction 'AUC12 (10)' has been cancelled.
Auctions	01.09.2020 15:21:44	Auction 'AUC12 (10)' has been published.
Reports	01.09.2020 15:21:21	Attention: Please be aware of a scheduled system outage for regular maintenance reasons. The system will not be available on the 10th of April 2020 at 20:00 for 15 minutes. We apologize for any inconvenience.
Messages	01.09.2020 15:21:06	Auction 'AUC18 (9)' has been accepted.
	01.09.2020 15:20:41	Auction 'AUC18 (9)' has been opened.
	01.09.2020 15:20:40	Auction 'AUC18 (9)' has been published.
	01.09.2020 15:20:13	Auction 'AUC16 (8)' has been accepted.
	01.09.2020 15:19:35	Auction 'AUC16 (8)' has been opened.
	01.09.2020 15:19:34	Auction 'AUC16 (8)' has been published.
	01.09.2020 15:19:11	Auction 'AUC07 (7)' has been cancelled.
	01.09.2020 15:18:56	Auction 'AUC07 (7)' has been opened.
	01.09.2020 15:18:54	Auction 'AUC07 (7)' has been published.
	01.09.2020 15:18:27	Auction 'AUC06 (6)' has been cancelled.
	01.09.2020 15:18:01	Auction 'AUC06 (6)' has been opened.
		« 1 2 »
		© 2017, 2020 M7A; M7 Auction Service v5.0.242-SNAPSHOT <u>en</u> ⇔ <u>de</u>

KB M7AUSR13

Figure 5: List of Messages

The most recent message is also displayed to a logged in user as a "Info Notification" on the top of the application screen. The users have an instant overview of what happens in the system which makes it harder for the users to overlook any important announcement.

3 Auctions

The menu item "Auctions" gives the Auction Bidder users an overview of the auctions.

3.1 Auction Overview

The Auctions section allows the Bidder to view the auctions sorted by Name, Product, Number of Lots and auctioned Energy per Lot. The users can also see the phase of all listed auctions. The auction in the running phase has a countdown timer placed above the progress bar. The users can see how much time remains until the end of the auction. Both the progress bar and the countdown timer are also available on the bidding screen. Auctions can also be sorted according to Opening times and Phases. The Auction detail appears whenever the user clicks on the particular auction item from the list. By default, all available auctions are displayed in the auction list. However, the user is able to search for specific auctions by entering any auction detail into the search field. The user can also choose whether to view only auctions in a specific phase. To do so, filter located in upper right-hand corner can be applied. Following options are available:

- All (default)
- Published
- Running all auctions in phase "Running" or "Closed"
- Finished all auctions in phase "Rejected" or "Finished"
- My Running all auctions in phase "Running" or "Closed" in which the user has a bid
- My Finished all auctions in phase "Rejected" or "Finished" in which the user has a bid.

	* P	uctions								
PLACEHOLDER	٩	Search for Auction	s 2 matchir					All Published F	Running Finished M	Ny Running My Finisl
	N	ame		Product	Number o Lots	f Energy per Lot		Progress 🔺		Phase
Auctions	A	UC03 (3)		BASEYEAR	5	26 352 MWh		12:00 (02.09.)	18:00 (02.09.)	
Reports	A	UC04 (4)		PEAKDEC	7	1 104 MWh		18:00 (02.09.)	20:00 (02.09.)	
Messages		Auction Details								
		Name AUC04	Delivery Year	2020 Product	PEAKDEC	Number of Lots 7	Power per Lot	4 MW Opening	02.09.2020 18:00	
		Closing 02.09.20	20 20:00 Ph	ase PUBLISHED						
		Calculated Values	5							
	:	Energy per Lot	104 MWh							
								6 2011, 2020 Mi		
JI M7AUSR23										
0 🖪 👂										

Figure 6: List of Auctions

Confidential Version 5.0.242 Page 8 of 19

MFG170 - M7 Auction - Bidder Handbook

3.2 Auction Lifecycle

An auction can go through several phases:

- Published
- Running
- Closed
- Finished
- Rejected

As soon as an auction is "Published", it is visible for Bidders. During the **Published** phase the Bidder can view the available information for the auction: Name, Product, Number of Lots, Energy per Lot, Opening and Closing Time. In the detail of the auction there are other auction related attributes.

Auction Details					
Name AUC04 Delivery	Year 2020 Product	PEAKDEC Number of	Lots 7 Power per L	ot 4 MW Opening	02.09.2020 18:00
Closing 02.09.2020 20:00	Phase PUBLISHED				
Calculated Values					
Energy per Lot 1104 MWh					

Figure 7: Published Auction

The start of the **Running** phase denotes also the start of the auction (also known as the "Call Phase"). During the "Call Phase", the users can submit, modify or cancel bids. All bids that were submitted for an own member, regardless by which user, are visible for the Bidder and can be modified or cancelled.

Apart from the standard auction attributes, the Bidder can also see the Maximum Accepted Price of the running auction. However, this attribute is only available in the auctions which have been enabled by the Market Operator. The Maximum Accepted Price is displayed within the Auction Result. If it is not available, then Auction Result is not displayed at all.

Auction Details	Delivery Year 2020	Product BASEYEAR	Number of Lots 7	Power per Lot 4 MW	Opening 01.09.2020 15:18	
Closing 02.09.20	020 16:00 Phase RUM	NNING				
Calculated Value	s					
Energy per Lot	35 136 MWh					
Auction Result						
Maximum Accept	ed Price 43.12 EUR					
			[] Show Bids L	ist		

Figure 8: Running Auction

When the specified time of the auction is over the auction goes to phase **Closed** and thus the "Freeze Phase" starts. During this time the bidder can view the bids for the own Member but cannot modify or cancel them. During the "Freeze Phase" Market Operator can decide whether the auction should be reopened, accepted or rejected. If an auction is reopened it goes back to phase "Running", if it is accepted it goes to phase **Finished** and if it is rejected to phase **Rejected**. However, auctions can be also automatically accepted. In this case the "Closed" phase is completely missing and auction goes directly to phase "Finished".

©2020 Deutsche Boerse AG - All rights reserved. The information contained in this document is confidential or protected by law. Any unauthorized copying of this document or part of it or unauthorized distribution of the information contained herein is prohibited. All materials provided by DB in this context are and remain the intellectual property of DB and all rights therein are reserved.

Confidential Version 5.0.242 Page 9 of 19

sche Börse AG	Confidentia
uction 5.0	Version 5.0.242
170 - M7 Auction - Bidder Handbook	Page 10 of 19
Auction Details	
Name AUC18 Delivery Year 2020 Product BASEY Number of Lots S Power per Lot 4 MW Opening 01.09.2020 15:20	
Closing 01.09.2020 15:21 Phase FINISHED	
Calculated Values	
Energy per Lot 35 136 MWh	
Auction Result	
Average Accepted Price 44.28 EUR Maximum Accepted Price 45.62 EUR	
(Download Reports	
C Show Bids List	
	Sche Börse AG uction 5.0 170 - M7 Auction - Bidder Handbook Auction Details Name AUC18 Delivery Year 2020 Product BASEY Number of Lots 5 Power per Lot 4 MW Opening 01.09.2020 15:21 Phase FINISHED Calculated Values Energy per Lot 35 136 MWh Auction Result Average Accepted Price 44.28 EUR Maximum Accepted Price 45.62 EUR

Figure 9: Finished Auction

Similarly, the Auction Result is available for the finished auction only if the Market Operator enabled it. If so, the users are able to see not only the Maximum Accepted Price but also the Average Accepted Price.

If the auction is rejected no bids are executed.

4 Bids

The "Bids List" allows the Bidders to view, submit, modify and cancel bids. It is displayed after pressing the button "Show Bids List" available in the bottom of the auction detail. The "Bids List" is available for auctions in any phase except Published.

The Bidder can view all bids submitted by a user which member is assigned also to him/her. However, the bids can be filtered in the table according to the member for which they were submitted. On the basis of the selected Member, the values within the Bid Overview are calculated. The values are calculated only based on the bids in the table below. The bids can be also sorted by any available attribute in the table. In the case that all of the bids cannot fit into the window, a scroll-bar is available.

The "Bids List" also shows the overall Bid ranking if "Show Ranking" is turned on for the auction. The Bidder is then able to see how his/her bid compares to others.

			1.01			
			+ Pl	ace Bids		PS: 0
Auc	tion Result					
Ma	ximum Accepted Price 43.12 EU	JR				
Bid	Overview					
Max	imum Price 43.53 EUR Minimum Price	42.98 EUR Average Price 43.	15 EUR Number of Bids	4 Number of Free Slots 1		
	User	Balancir	ng Group	Member	- Price -	+ Rank
	M7AUSR13	11XLAK	EMANX	MBRLM	- 42.98	+ 3
	M7AUSR13	11XLAK	EMANX	MBRLM	- 42.98	+ 4
	M7AUSR13	11XLAK	EMANX	MBRLM	- 43.12	+ 5
	M7AUSR14	11XLAK	EMANX	MBRLM	- 43.53	+ > 5

Figure 10: Figure List of Bids

4.1 Submitting Bids

The Bidder can only submit bids during the Running auction phase. In order to submit a new bid, the user must click on "+ Place Bids" button and enter values for the required fields:

- Member, from a drop-down menu
- Price (EUR)

extion 5.0 Version P0 - M7 Auction - Bidder Handbook Page Image: Page	he Börse AG					Con
0 - M7 Auction - Bidder Handbook Page AUC11 (a) BASEY 5 Lots 35 136 MWh per Lot 15:17 (01.09) 1:00:42:06 16:00 (02.09) PUNNING * + Place Bids + Place Bids Price - + EUR Price - + EUR	tion 5.0					Version
AUC11 (a) BASEY * S Lots 35 136 MWh per Lot 15:17 (01.09) 16:00 (02.09) I RUNNIC X	0 - M7 Auction - Bio	lder Handbook				Page
AUC1 (a) BASEY* 5 Lots 35 136 MWh per Lot 15:17 (01.09) 10:00:42:06 16:00 (02.09) (P RUNNIC) X						
+ Place Bids	AUC11 (4)	BASEY 두	5 Lots	35 136 MWh per Lot	15:17 (01.09.) 1:00:42:06 16:00 (02.09.)	
Member MBRLM Price + EUR Price +			+ Pla	ace Bids		• \$\$ PS: 0.01
Price + EUR	Member MBRLM V	Price - + EUR	✓ Place Bids			
Price Price </td <td></td> <td>Price - + EUR</td> <td></td> <td></td> <td></td> <td></td>		Price - + EUR				
Price		Price - + EUR				
Price Auction Result Maximum Accepted Price There are no bids to list. X Cancel Selected Bids > Reset Modifications		Price - + EUR				
Auction Result Maximum Accepted Price No Maximum Accepted Price There are no bids to list. x Cancel Selected Bids x Cancel S		Price - + EUR				
Maximum Accepted Price No Maximum Accepted Price There are no bids to list. (× Cancel Selected Bids) (* Modify Bids) (* Modify Bids)	Auction Result					
There are no bids to list. × Cancel Selected Bids Modify Bids	Maximum Accepted Price N					
	There are no bids to list.					
	X Cancel Selected Bids				S Reset M	odifications

Figure 11: Submit a New Bid

From the drop-down menu "Member", only members assigned to the Bidder can be chosen. This menu is available only if the Bidder has assigned more than one Member.

The user is able to see as many price input fields as there are free slots for the auction. He/she must enter at least one price to submit the bid, however he/she can also place more than one bid at a time by entering more than one price value. The user is allowed to enter as many bids as there are free slots available for the selected member. If there is no free slot, then no bid can be placed for that member.

The Price value can either be entered via keyboard or by using the respective "+" and "-" buttons which are situated next to the field. The buttons "+" or "-" increase, respectively decrease the bid price by the price step. The configuration of the price step can be achieved by clicking the cogwheel icon in the upper right-hand corner of the page. The price of a newly submitted bid cannot be less than the Minimum Price or greater than the Maximum Price if they are set up otherwise, an error message is displayed.

After specifying the required information, the user must press the button "Place Bid" in order to submit the bid. After the submission, the bid is entered in the Bids List and the Member and Price fields will remain pre-filled with values of newly submitted bid.

However, before the bid is fully submitted, the Price of the entered bid is also checked against the expected price range. If the bid is out of this range, the user is warned by a pop-up window. If he/she still wants to place such a bid, he/she needs to confirm it in the pop-up window. However, the placed bids which are above the maximum price limit will be automatically rejected when the auction is closed.



Figure 12: Pop-up price out of range

The system assigns a random globally unique Bid ID with maximum 10 digits to every submitted bid. This ID, together with Bid Creation Time and Bid Last Modified Time, is available in the detail of the bid. The detail of the bid can be accessed by clicking the arrow button beside every bid.

4.2 Modifying Bids

The Bidder can modify the existing bids for the own Member any time during the Running phase. In order to modify one or more bids, the user adjusts their values directly in the Bid table, either using "+" and "-" buttons, or via keyboard. The buttons "+" or "-" increase, respectively decrease the bid price by the price step. The configuration of the price step can be achieved by clicking the cogwheel icon in the upper right-hand corner of the page.

		th Place Ride				•	
		Trace blus					PS: 0
Auction Re	esult						
Maximum	Accepted Price No Maximum Accepted Price						
Bid Overvi	iew						
Maximum Price	e 43.53 EUR Minimum Price 42.98 EUR Avera	ge Price 43.15 EUR Number of Bids 4 Number of Free	Slots 1				
User		Balancing Group	Member	-	Price 🔺	+	Rank
► M7	AUSR13	11XLAKEMANX	MBRLM	Ξ	42.88	9+	2
► M7	AUSR13	11XLAKEMANX	MBRLM	Ξ	42.98	+	1
► M7	AUSR13	11XLAKEMANX	MBRLM	\Box	43.12	+	3
► M7	AUSR14	11XLAKEMANX	MBRLM	Ξ	43.53	+	4
× Cancel Sel	lected Bids				D Reset Modific	ations	🗸 Modify Bid

Figure 13: Modify Bids

The user can also adjust Price values of several bids in one direction at once. In order to do so, the user ticks the boxes in front of the respective Bids and presses the "+" or "-" buttons which are situated by the Price title of the Bids table. After that, the Price value will be adjusted in the desired direction, by the value of configured price step.

At this phase, none of the modifications are executed. The Bid adjustments are highlighted. It is only when the user presses the "Modify Bids" button and confirms the modification in a pop-up window, that all displayed adjustments are taken into account. The values lose their highlight, indicating that the modifications have been fully executed. At any time before the modifications are executed, all details of the bids can be reset to their actual values by pressing the "Reset Modifications" button.

Deutsche Börse AG	Confidential
M7 Auction 5.0	Version 5.0.242
MFG170 - M7 Auction - Bidder Handbook	Page 14 of 19

During the bid modification, the same validations are performed as during the bid submission. The check of the modified bid price is done against the Minimum and Maximum Price. If the value of the bid price is violated, an error message is displayed. The bid price is also checked against the expected price range. If the bid is out of this range, the user is warned by a pop-up window. Moreover, if the "Limit Bid Modification" is turned on for the auction in which the bid is modified then the user is only able to decrease the price. An error is displayed if the bid is increased above the original value.

After the modifications are fully executed, the Last Modified timestamp of each modified bid is updated.

4.3 Cancelling Bids

The Bidders can cancel the existing bids for their own Members at any time during the Running phase.

In order to cancel one or more bids, the Bidder ticks the boxes in front of the respective Bids. For convenience, the user can select and de-select all displayed bids by clicking on the title of the column with the tick boxes. The user should take into account that whenever a bid is cancelled then it cannot be replaced with a new one because every bid including the cancelled bid consumes one slot. The user is allowed to enter as many bids as there are free slots available for the selected member. The information of available free slots is stated in the Bid Overview. If the user can place bids for more then one member, the member needs to be selected first in the drop down menu on the left hand side. If there is no free slot, then no new bid can be placed for that member.

			+ Place B	Bids		•	Q PS: 0
Auc	tion Result						
Ma	ximum Accepted Price 43.98 EU	R					
Bid	Overview						
Max	imum Price 42.95 EUR Minimum Price	41.12 EUR Average Price 42.04	EUR Number of Bids 4	Number of Free Slots 1			
		Palassia					Dl-
	User	Balancing	g Group	Member		+	Rank
	M7AUSR23	112POW		MBRPG	- 41.12	÷	
	M7AUSR23	11XPOWI		MBRPG	45.73	÷	4
	MITAUSALS	HAFOW	-NGA5X	MBAFG	43.15		~
	M/AUSR23	11XPOW	ERGASX	MBRPG	45.98		≻5
×c	ancel Selected Bids	11XPOWI	ERGASX	MBRPG	45.98	Nodifications 🗸	> 5 ′ Modify Bio
×C	M/AUSR23 ancel Selected Bids	11XPOWI	ERGASX	MBRPG	45.98	lodifications	> 5 ″ Modify Bio
×C	MrAUSH23 ancel Selected Bids	11XPOW	ERGASX	MBRPG	45.98	lodifications	> 5 ″ Modify Bio
×c	ancel Selected Bids	++XPOW	:RGASX	MBRPG	45.98	lodifications	≻ 5 ′ Modify Bio
×c	ancel Selected Bids	11XFOW	RGAS—X	MBRPG	45.98	lodifications	≻ 5 ′ Modify Bio
×C	ancel Selected Bids	11XFOW	RGAS—X	MBRPG	45.98	todifications (× 5 ′ Modify Bio
×C	ancel Selected Bids	11XFOW	RGAS—X	MBRPG	45.98 D Reset M	Indiffications	×5 * Modify Bio
×C	ancel Selected Bids	11,240	RGAS—X	MBRPG	45.98 D Reset M	todifications) (v	×5
×C	ancel Selected Bids	11,21004	RGAS—X	MBRPG	45.98 D Reset M	lodifications) (v	≻ 5 ^ Modify Bio
×C	ancel Selected Bids	11,21004	RGAS—X	MBRPG	45.98 D Reset M	Indiffications	×5 Y Modify Bir

Figure 14: Cancelled Bids

After the bid selection has been made, the user can proceed with the cancellation by pressing the button "Cancel Selected Bids". Afterwards, the user must confirm the cancellation in a pop-up window.

4.4 Executed Bids

In the "Bids List" the user is able to see if his/her bids were accepted or rejected after the auction has finished. The accepted bids are marked green in the last Result column of the bids table.

MFG170 - M7 Auction - Bidder Handbook

Confidential

Version 5.0.242

Page 15 of 19

Auction Result					
Average Accepted Price	42.58 EUR Maximum Accepted	Price 43.15 EUR			
Bid Overview					
Maximum Price 45.98 EUR	Minimum Price 41.12 EUR Average Price	44.01 EUR Number of Bids 4 Number	r of Free Slots 1		
Jser	Balancing Group	Member	Price 🔺	Rank	Result
M7AUSR23	11XPOWERGASX	MBRPG	41.12	1	Accepted
M7AUSR23	11XPOWERGASX	MBRPG	42.95	4	Accepted
M7AUSR23	11XPOWERGASX	MBRPG	45.98	> 5	Rejected
M7AUSR23	11XPOWERGASX	MBRPG	45.98	> 5	Rejected
MTAUSR23	11XPOWERGASX	MBRPG	45.98	>5	Rejected

Figure 15: Accepted Bids

MFG170 - M7 Auction - Bidder Handbook

5 Reports

The Bidder has access to the following reports:

- All Bids
- Auction Result

5.1 Download a Report

The All Bids reports are accessed from the "Reports" menu. Here, the user can select the Delivery year and format of the report he/she wishes to download. If the Bidder has assigned more than one Member, he/she needs to select also the Member for which the report is going to be generated. The reports are generated on the fly when requested and are available in CSV and CSG format. The appendix describes the structure of the reports and shows an example.

Available Reports	×
All Bids	•
CSV CSG Delivery Years: Members:	✓ ∠ Download

Figure 16: Report Pop-up Window

In order to download the Auction Result report, the user must first choose the auction for which the report should be downloaded and then press the button "Download Reports" located in the bottom left hand corner of the Auction detail:

Auction Details						
Name AUC18	Delivery Year 2020	Product BASEY	Number of Lots 5	Power per Lot 4 MW	Opening 01.09.2020 15:20	
Closing 01.09.2020	15:21 Phase	FINISHED				
Calculated Values						
Energy per Lot 35 1	36 MWh					
Auction Result						
Average Accepted Pr	rice 44.28 EUR	Maximum Accepted Price	e 45.62 EUR			
Download Reports						
			[] Show	Bids List		

Figure 17: Download Report

As soon as the button is pressed, a pop-up window is displayed where the user can select the type of the report to download. The report is available in PDF format.

5.2 Report Types

5.2.1 All Bids Report

The All Bids Report contains information about all bids placed by the user in all finished auctions for a selected Delivery year. The bids information include not only the balancing group for which the bid was placed, the time when it was placed

Deutsche Börse AG	Confidential
M7 Auction 5.0	Version 5.0.242
MFG170 - M7 Auction - Bidder Handbook	Page 17 of 19

and the price but also the bid acceptance status and the ranking. The All Bids Report contains also the overall auction information.

5.2.2 Auction Result Report

The Auction Result is a PDF document which contains all submitted bids and the overall result of a selected auction. The header of the document shows the parameters of the auction and the results of the auction like the average price and the maximum accepted price. The bid information includes the balancing group for which the bid was placed, the time when it was placed, the price and the bid status. The report is available only for finished auctions.

6 Appendix

Confidential Version 5.0.242 Page 18 of 19

6.1 All Bids Report

6.1.1 Sample All Bids Report in CSV Format

DELIVERY_YEAR;AUCTION_ID;CLOSURE_TIME;PRODUCT;NUMBER_OF_LOTS;POWER_PER_LOT;ENERGY_PER_LOT;BALANCING_GR
OUP_EIC;SUBMISSION_TIME;LAST_UPDATED_TIME;PRICE;RANKING;ACCEPTANCE
2020;AUC02;16.06.2020 14:00;Base Q1;3;1;2183;11XCOMPTONX;16.06.2020 13:43:12.189;16.06.2020
13:43:12.189;45.02;1;Accepted
2020;AUC02;16.06.2020 14:00;Base Q1;3;1;2183;11XCOMPTONX;16.06.2020 13:43:12.189;16.06.2020
13:43:12.189;45.02;2;Accepted
2020;AUC02;16.06.2020 14:00;Base Q1;3;1;2183;11XCOMPTONX;16.06.2020 13:43:27.429;16.06.2020
13:43:27.429;45.98;;Rejected
2020;AUC01;16.06.2020 14:00;Base Q1;2;2;4366;11XCOMPTONX;16.06.2020 13:41:12.518;16.06.2020
13:41:12.518;42.51;1;Accepted
2020;AUC01;16.06.2020 14:00;Base Q1;2;2;4366;11XCOMPTONX;16.06.2020 13:42:23.447;16.06.2020
13:42:23.447;45.67;;Rejected

6.1.2 Sample All Bids Report in CSG Format

DELIVERY_YEAR;AUCTION_ID;CLOSURE_TIME;PRODUCT;NUMBER_OF_LOTS;POWER_PER_LOT;ENERGY_PER_LOT;BALANCING_GR OUP_EIC;SUBMISSION_TIME;LAST_UPDATED_TIME;PRICE;RANKING;ACCEPTANCE 2020;AUC02;16.06.2020 14:00;Base Q1;3;1;2183;11XCOMPTON-----X;16.06.2020 13:43:12,189;16.06.2020 13:43:12,189;45,02;2;Accepted 2020;AUC02;16.06.2020 14:00;Base Q1;3;1;2183;11XCOMPTON-----X;16.06.2020 13:43:27,429;16.06.2020 13:43:12,189;45,02;2;Accepted 2020;AUC02;16.06.2020 14:00;Base Q1;3;1;2183;11XCOMPTON-----X;16.06.2020 13:43:27,429;16.06.2020 13:43:27,429;45,98;;Rejected 2020;AUC01;16.06.2020 14:00;Base Q1;2;2;4366;11XCOMPTON-----X;16.06.2020 13:41:12,518;16.06.2020 13:41:12,518;42,51;1;Accepted 2020;AUC01;16.06.2020 14:00;Base Q1;2;2;4366;11XCOMPTON-----X;16.06.2020 13:42:23,447;16.06.2020 13:42:23,447;45,67;;Rejected

6.2 Auction Result Report

Auction Results

Id: AUC27

THIS IS LOGO PLACEHOLDER

# Lots:	5	Delivery Year:	2020
Average Price [€ / MWh]:	43.04	Product:	Base Year
Maximum Price [€ / MWh]:	43.40	Date:	01.01.2020
		Energy per lot [MWh]:	35 136
		Total Energy [MWh]:	175 680

Bal. Group	Submitted	Last Update	Price	Bid n.	Status
			[€ / MWh]	I	
11XLAKEMANX	01.01.2020 09:00:30.296	01.01.2020 09:00:30.296	42.90	1	Accepted
11XLAKEMANX	01.01.2020 09:00:25.871	01.01.2020 09:00:25.871	43.10	2	Accepted
11XLAKEMANX	01.01.2020 09:00:25.871	01.01.2020 09:00:25.871	43.10	3	Accepted
11XLAKEMANX	01.01.2020 09:00:36.793	01.01.2020 09:00:36.793	44.80	4	Rejected
11XLAKEMANX	01.01.2020 09:00:36.793	01.01.2020 09:00:36.793	44.80	5	Rejected

01.01.2020 09:01:02

Generated by M7 Auction Service.

Page 1 of 1

Figure 18: Auction Result Report